# Quick Guide for FHR Navigator Case Tracking

## Contents

Contents	
Case Tracking in FHR Navigator	2
Create a New Case	3
Search for, View, and Edit Cases	6
Reassign or Assign a Case	9
Add an Attachment to a Case	9
From the Case Information screen (illustration on page 7)	9
On the Add Step/Comment/Reassign screen (of the Case Information screen)	
Forms Manager and Case Tracking	10
Managing Forms Associated with a Case	10
Forms in Read-only Mode	12
Controlling Employee Access to Cases	12
Case Tracking Email Notifications	13
Close or Re-Open a Case	13

#### Note:

This EconSys FHR Navigator Quick Guide is provided for the use of those agencies that have licensed one or more of the Case Tracking functions. If your agency does not currently license a Case Tracking function the features and screens discussed here will not be visible as described.

Screen depictions may include other functions and links that your agency does not subscribe to. Also, screen design may vary slightly from that shown here.



### **Case Tracking in FHR Navigator**

*Case Tracking* allows HR users and employees to track the progress of an action being processed. This feature also allows tracking of workload and types of work being performed and how much time is spent on each case. In a sense Case Tracking is similar to a specialized email system, including the ability to attach documents to messages. Click on an item to open it and then you can view the case history, reassign the case, add comments, add a step, or upload attachments.

Work in the system is broken down by "Case Type." **Notice that the term "Case Tracking" does not appear on the left side menu** in FHR Navigator. Each agency has different Case Tracking case types and will have a different left menu. Different *roles* within your agency may also have different *access* to case types. Agency case types *are* displayed in the left menu, and at this time possible case types include: Onboarding, Benefits, Personnel Actions, Retirement, Separation, Transfer, Recruitment, and Performance. The explanations given in this Quick Guide apply to all case types listed.

On the home page there is a section on the right labeled "Case Tracking" which allows you to view all case work, regardless of the case type, in one common report box. It also displays a quick report on the number of open items.



The Home Screen: In the example above, "On-boarding," "Benefits," "Personnel Actions," "Retirement," and "Separation" are case types and represent types of work that can be processed in the system. To view all work in a common inbox, click on the links of the case type on the home page on the *right side* of the screen.



An individual piece of work is called a "Case Tracking Item" and is assigned to an "owner" to be worked on. To see a list of outstanding case tracking items, click on the appropriate HR *function* or *case type* in the left menu.

Click on an item in the left menu to view a listing of cases that match the item. For example, clicking on "Benefits" displays all Benefits case tracking items that are assigned to you.

<b>FHR</b> NAVIGATOR	<b>5</b> Ed	con <mark>Sys</mark>				Resiz <u>Account Se</u>	re text: <u>A</u> <u>A</u> <u>A</u>
Role: Specialist - EconSys - Client	<u>Change Role</u>			Employee	Search: Nam	ne or SSN	>
Home <u>Retirement Calculator</u> <u>Historical Data</u> <u>Scenario Manager</u> <u>On-boarding</u> <b>Benefits</b> <u>Personnel Actions</u>	Case Trackii action. Oper comments, Enter multip cases are m	its ng allows HR and an E n a case by clicking on and other information. le keywords to search arked with an asterisk to Me Initiated	mployee to track the proce the tracking number to se Click a column label to so multiple columns at the se *. I by Me All Cases	essing of an ee case history, rt records by it. ame time. New	Se N	lected Empl o employee selected. New Case	oyee
Retirement Separation	Tracking Number	Activity	Detail/Step	HR Comments	Date & Time 🔻	Employee	Owner
<u>Reports</u> <u>eRetirement Wizard</u>	Enter keyw	Enter keyword	Enter keyword	Enter keyword	mm/dd/yyyy	Last name, first	Last name, first
Forms Manager Help Resources	<u>1452</u>	Miscellaneous Benefits1016130255	Submitted		10/16/2013 02:55:26 PM	<u>Test, Cathy</u>	KETTNER, KIMBERLY
Quick Guides Benefits Tutorial Retirement Info (employee pamphlet) Request Training	<u>1397</u>	Federal Employees Health Benefits (FEHB)	Federal Employees Health Benefits (FEHB)		07/10/2013 01:04:09 PM	<u>St John, Test</u>	KETTNER, KIMBERLY
Release Notes	<u>1367</u>	Miscellaneous Benefits0709130955	Need information/correction		06/21/2013 11:26:24 AM	<u>Test, Jennifer</u>	KETTNER, KIMBERLY
	<u>1282</u>	Miscellaneous Benefits0316130158	Submitted		03/16/2013 01:58:31 PM	Test, Blue Org: Dental Benefits (01-02-	KETTNER, KIMBERLY

Case List: The example above shows the list view of case tracking items. In this example, the cases are Benefits cases.

- On the *Home* screen, search for the employee.
- Click on "Cases Assigned to Me" on the right side under Case Tracking.
- The "Cases Assigned to Me" list displays, on a screen labeled "Case Tracking."

#### **Create a New Case**

Cases are usually created on behalf of employees or in order to facilitate communication with employees. Creating a case will also allow you to create forms for an employee to fill out.

- 1. Search for the employee record that you need to work with. The employee search appears on every page in the upper right.
- 2. In the search results page, there is a shortcut to create a case under 'Quick Actions'. If you choose this shortcut, you may skip to step 6.

## Employee Search

You may search for an employee by Name , Social Security Number, or POI. To perform a search, enter the search criterion, select the type of search from the list, and click on the Search button. Click on the employee's name that you want.

Search Name	for test, j		Search »		
Name	Social Security Number	ΡΟΙ	Request Date / SVC History	SCD	Quick Actions
<u>TEST,</u> JENNIFER	xxx-xx-5444	1695	05/20/2013		View Cases New Case History Scenarios
<u>TEST, JOHN</u> <u>A</u>	xxx-xx-0050	1636	08/09/2010		View Cases New Case History Scenarios
First 10 Pi	revious 10				

- 3. Click on the name of the employee to review the personal information screen and make sure you have selected the right record.
- 4. Click on the appropriate case type in the left menu (e.g., Benefits) for the type of work to be done. This displays case tracking items for the selected function. To make sure a duplicate item does not already exist, click on one of the green tabs; either "Employee All Cases" or "Employee Assigned to Me."

Benefits				Sel	ected Employee	1
Open a case by clicking on label to sort records by it. E marked with an asterisk *. Assigned to Me Initia	the tracking number to see Enter multiple keywords to s ated by Me All Cases	case history, comments, earch multiple columns a	. and other information. Click at the same time. New cases	: a column SP	ECIALIST, ALLPO DCCI ew Case Employee - Al Case	DEPT
Tracking Number	Activity	Detail/Step	HR Comments	Date & Time 🔻	Employee	Owner
Enter keyw	Enter keyword	Enter keyword	Enter keyword	mm/dd/yyyy	Enter Name	Enter Name
Open Cases Only	ubmit Search Query Clear Sea	arch Form Expand View				
No cases to track.						>

- 5. Click on the 'New Case' button in the right to create a new case.
- 6. This brings you to the Create New Case screen (illustration next page).
  - a. Select "yes" or "no" to designate whether or not the selected employee is to receive an email notification of the case initiation, if applicable.
  - b. Add email addresses, as needed, to notify any stakeholders of the work being performed.
  - c. Modify the Case Type if needed, and then select the Activity. The Activity is a subcategory for Case Type. The items on this drop-down menu are stipulated by your agency.
  - d. Select a Detail/Step. These also vary by agency, and are pre-populated for convenience of users.

Create New	Case	
Selected Employee: <b>Test, J</b> <u>Persona</u>	ennifer al Info Page >	
Send an Email to Employee?	Yes	
Notify By Email:	Add	
Case Type	Benefits 🗸	
Activity	Leave Donor Program	
Detail/Step	Forms Submitted	
Select the form(s) for this case	□ Select all       Forms marked with        are mandatory         □ OPM 1637 - Application to Become a Leave Recipient Under the Emergency Leave         Transfer Program         ☑ OPM 630 - Application to Become a Leave Recipient Under the Voluntary Leave         Transfer Program         □ OPM 630A - Request to Donate Annual Leave (Within Agency)         □ OPM 630B - Request to Donate Annual Leave (Outside Agency)	γ.
Comments (Entries here are visible to the employee)	▲	
HR Comments (Entries here are NOT visible to the employee)	~	
Employee	Test, Jennifer	_
Attachment, if any For security reasons, the user must log in to FHR Navigator to view the attachment. The attachment is NOT sent along with the email.	Browse Add another file (exclude .exe, .bat & .com file types. The file name should not exceed 100 characters.)	
Assign this case to	Myself	
	To assign case to another person, enter name here	
Save and Next Screen	Cancel	

#### Create New Case screen.

- 7. Select appropriate forms, if needed. Available forms vary depending on the Case Type and Activity selected. Your agency determines which forms are available for your Case Types and Activities. If you cannot find the form you need, first check the 'Miscellaneous' activity, if available. If the form is not listed, contact your FHR Navigator Administrator or contact support@econsys.com.
  - a. Enter "Comments" to explain the purpose or other pertinent information about the case.

- 8. Make any HR comments in the appropriate box. Employees will not see these comments if they are entered in the box labeled "HR Comments."
  - a. Attach documents relevant to the case being created by clicking on the "Browse" button. Note: Attachments are accessible to the employee only if employees are allowed to access FHR Navigator.
  - b. By default, the case will be assigned to you, but you have the option to assign it to a different HR Specialist, if needed.
- 9. Click "Save and Next Screen" to create the case.

#### Search for, View, and Edit Cases

To view and search for cases, click the appropriate Case Type in the left menu to get a listing of cases assigned to you.

 In the "Cases Assigned to Me," select a case by clicking on the "Tracking Number" in the first column. You can also search for a case by using the search query. See the "Submit Search Query" button in this illustration. In the search criteria boxes above these buttons, enter a key word under Tracking Number, Activity, Detail/Step, HR Comments, Date and Time, Employee, or Owner. Then click "Submit Search Query." For a new search, first "Clear Search Form."

Case Tra	acking_		Sel	ected Employee			
Open a case by clicking on the tracking number to see case history, comments, and other information.       No employee selected.         Click a column label to sort records by it. Enter multiple keywords to search multiple columns at the same time. New cases are marked with an asterisk *.       New Case							
Assigned to	Me Initiate	d by Me All Cases					
Tracking Number	Case Type	Activity	Detail/Step	HR Comments	Date & Time 🔻	Employee	Owner
Enter keyw		Activity	Detai/Step	Enter keyword	mm/dd/yyyy	Jones, Robert	Enter Name
Open Cases	Only Submit S	Search Query Clear Searc	h Form Expand Vie	w Previous Page Nex	t Page Displaying pa	age 1 of 27	
<u>1555</u>	Benefits	Military <u>View Forms</u>	Forms Submitted		06/16/2014 09:42:54 AM	DARWIN, CHUCK Org: Budget Ofc (01-01-0000- 00-00-00)	ALGOMINO, FRED
<u>1532</u> *	Retirement	Miscellaneous	Package Deleted		04/25/2014 01:36:43 PM	DARWIN, CHUCK Org: Budget Ofc (01-01-0000- 00-00-00)	ALGOMINO, FRED
<u>1533</u>	On-boarding	New Appointment Temporary	Forms Reviewed	sdfgdsfg	04/24/2014 06:14:17 PM	FERCCA, ELIZABETH Type 2 Org: Staffing Ofc (01-02-0000- 00-00-00)	ALGOMINO, FRED

- 2. The "Case Information" screen appears (illustration next page).
- 3. Note the action buttons on this screen. You can *add a step or comment*, *reassign the case*, *close the case*, *view the case history*, *attach documents*, *and select persons to be notified when a case action is taken*. On the right side of the screen is a list of forms associated with the case, if any.
- 4. Click on "Add Step/Comment/Reassign."
- 5. The "Add Detail/Step" screen displays. You will notice this is nearly identical to the "Create New Case" screen.

Case Information	n	Forms Folder	
This page lists the details of the ca history and any forms that are ass	se. From here, you can view the case ociated with the case.	Benefits0820090312	•
Add Step/Comment/Reassign	Close Case View History Back	• 1152 • 12 SF 61	
Case #126		• 12 <u>TSP 3</u> • 12 <u>TSP 60</u> • 12 <u>TSP 65</u>	• • •
Employee:	DEMO, IM A	• <u>TSP 76</u> • 20 OF 306	5
Organization:	Budget Ofc (01-01-0000-00-00-00-00)	• 2 AD 343 • 2 AD 1102(Early)	Č.
Owner:	TILTON, BILL	AD 1102(Pre Disab)	× .
Case Type, Activity:	Benefits, Process Forms	• AD 1102(Fin Disab) • AD 1102(Death)	Ŭ.
Last Detail/Step:	Case Reassigned		
Last Updated By:	TILTON, BILL 8/13/2012 4:08 PM	Manage/Edit Forms >	
Comments for Employee:	Reassigned by BILL TILTON to BILL TILTON	Attachments	
HR Comments:		Upload New Document	
Hidden from Employee:	No	To Be Notified List	
Back		The following email addresses will receive an email when this case is	

Add Detail/Step	×
Send an Email to Employee? Notify By Email:	Select  Select No Yes pagency.com
Case Type	Benefits 🗾
Activity	Process Forms
Detail/Step	Select
Comments for Employee Entries here are visible to the employee	
HR Comments Entries here are NOT visible to the employee	
Assign this case to:	Myself
Attachment, if any For security reasons, the user must log in to FHR Navigator to view the attachment. The attachment is NOT sent along with the email. Close case?	To assign case to another person, enter name here  Browse No file selected. Add another file (exclude .exe, .bat & .com file types. The file name should not exceed 100 characters.)  Cancel Cancel

Select whether or not to send an email to the selected employee, and set the Case Type from the dropdown menu.

Here is an example of activities that might be listed on the "Activity" menu.

Case Type	Benefits	
Activity	Select 💌	
Detail/Step	Select Beneficiary Forms	
Comments for Employee	Set an Appointment Federal Employees Health Benefits (FEHB) Federal Employees Group Life Insurance (FEGLI)	
here are visible to the employee	Flexible Spending Accounts Thrift Savings Plan Long Term Care (LTC) Insurance	
	Federal Dental and Vision Insurance Program (FEDVIP) Process Forms	
	Characters Remaining: 1200 (Maximum 120	O cl
HR Comments		

After selecting the "Activity," choose a "Detail/Step" from the next drop-down menu. This is an example of a typical "Detail/Step" menu. *Menu items depend on the selection made for "Activity."* 

Detail/Step	Select	~
Comments here are visible to the employee	Select Forms Submitted Review Stage Need information/correction Sent to eOPF	

Depending on roles assigned, (typically HR administrator, manager, or supervisor) users may also select "All Assigned Cases" or "Unassigned Cases" on the Home screen right side menu. These roles may also have permission to reassign a case to someone else. Users who have those permissions will see the "Reassign" button when they select a case and the "Case Tracking Details" screen opens. The next section explains how to use these options.

#### **Reassign or Assign a Case**

1. On the "Add Detail/Step" screen, begin entering the name in the blank field for "Assign this case to:"

Assign this case to:	Myself
	To assign case to another person, enter name here
Attachment, if any For security reasons, the	Browse No file selected.
user must log in to FHR Navigator to view the	Add another file (exclude .exe, .bat & .com file types. The file name should not exceed 100 characters.)
attachment. The	
along with the email.	
Close case?	
Sa	Ve Cancel

2. A list of eligible recipients displays.

Assign this case to:	Myself	
	A	
Attachment, if any	Adams, Aaron <no_email_address></no_email_address>	^
For security reasons, the	Aigner, Agnes <mortiz+aaigner@econsys.com></mortiz+aaigner@econsys.com>	
user must log in to FHR Navigator to view the	Algomino, Fred <mortiz+integration@econsys.com></mortiz+integration@econsys.com>	=
attachment is NOT sent	Allow Events steller @eeenege.com> Algomino, Fred <mortiz+integration@econsys.com> Demo, im <gemoia@agency.gov></gemoia@agency.gov></mortiz+integration@econsys.com>	
along with the email.	Demo, Im <idemo@agency.us.gov></idemo@agency.us.gov>	
Close case?	Specialist, A <kimberly@econsys.com></kimberly@econsys.com>	~
Save Cancel		

- 3. Select the name of the person to whom the case is to be reassigned.
- 4. Enter comments to the employee, if desired.
- 5. Enter comments to the individual to whom the case is being reassigned.
- 6. Click on "Save." The case will appear in "Cases Assigned to Me" for that individual.

#### Add an Attachment to a Case

#### From the Case Information screen (illustration on page 7)

- 1. On the right side menu, under "Attachments," click on "Upload New Document." The "Upload Document" screen displays (illustration on next page).
- 2. Select the "Step" and "browse" for the document in your computer folders or on your network.
- 3. Click on "Upload."



Step	Select	•	
Attachment		Browse	
	Add another file		
	(exclude .exe, .bat )	& .com file types.)	
Jpload			
16			

#### On the Add Step/Comment/Reassign screen (of the Case Information screen)

You can add attachments while also adding comments or reassigning the case.

- 1. Click on the Add Step/Comment/Reassign button to display the "Add Detail/Step" screen.
- 2. On this screen the final field is labeled "Attachment, if any." You can add up to 10 documents at a time. Click "Add another file" to enable the ability to select an additional document to upload.
- 3. Click the "Browse" button to the right of this field to open the folders on your computer or network, and locate the document(s) to be attached.
- 4. Select the document(s).
- 5. Click "Open."
- 6. Complete the rest of the page as described above.
- 7. Click "Save" to send save and send the case, if being reassigned.

#### **Forms Manager and Case Tracking**

If your agency is using Case Tracking, then you will notice that Forms Manager is integrated into Case Tracking. **In order to create forms, you must create a case**. When you create a case, a list of appropriate forms for the selected case type and activity will automatically be displayed. For example, when you select "Retirement," then "FERS," you will see the SF-3107 form and other related forms (note this example may vary depending on how your agency has chosen to configure Case Tracking).

Administrators in FHR Navigator can change the list of forms associated with each case type and activity by clicking on "Case Type, Activity and Forms" in the left menu in *User Account Administration*.

#### Managing Forms Associated with a Case

When you open a case, you will see any forms associated with the case on the right. Click on "Manage/Edit Forms" to complete any of the following tasks (provided your role grants you permission to do so):

- Add additional forms
- Delete forms
- Lock forms so that the employee cannot edit them
- Hide forms so that the employee cannot access them at all
- Select multiple completed forms and download them as a single PDF file



The Manage/Edit Forms link toggles you to Forms Manager, where you additional control over the forms. To toggle back to the Case Information page, click the View/Update Case # link.

Work	Folder	Benefits0603141206	
• To a • Click A <b>locke</b> A <b>hidde</b> Case Tr	dd more forms on the "View/U d form means t n form means t <b>racking: <u>View/</u></b>	to this folder, click on Add a Form to this pdate Case" link to view/update the hat the employee will not that the employee will not chat the employee will not chat the employee will	to attach ac
	Form #▼	Form Name	Crea
	<u>SF 2810</u>	Notice of Change in Health Benefits Enrollment	06/03
	<u>SF 2821</u>	Agency Certification of Insurance Status	06/13
Case Ti	racking: <u>View/</u>	Update Case #39679	

You can also access all forms for a selected employee by clicking on "Forms Manager" in the left menu. If there is a case associated with the forms, you can click the "View/Update Case#" link to reassign the case or add comments.

			New Case >	
cted Employee: DEMO, IMA O <u>Personal Info Page</u> >			Batch Process Forms >	
To edit or add a form to an existing fo To create a new folder of forms, click	lder, click on the folder name und on the "New Case" link on the rig	der the Work Folder tab below. ht.	Upload Files/Notes > Specialist & Payroll Office Info	1>
10				
w Forms By: Category or folder	•			
w Forms By: Category or folder Work Folder				Files/Not
w Forms By: Category or folder Work Folder Ulick on the folder name to fill out, edi Click on the "Submit Folder" link nex Folder Name	it, or view its contents. (You may t to the folder name to create a co Action	sort each column by clicking on any of the h ase tracking record OR click on the <b>"View/U</b> Case Tracking	eaders - e.g., Folder Name.) I <b>pdate Case"</b> link to view/update the case sta Created Date <del>-</del>	Files/Not
w Forms By: Category or folder Work Folder Click on the folder name to fill out, edi Click on the "Submit Folder" link next Folder Name Benefits0508140305	it, or view its contents. (You may t to the folder name to create a co Action	sort each column by clicking on any of the h ase tracking record OR click on the <b>"View/U</b> Case Tracking View/Update Case #1546	eaders - e.g., Folder Name.) <b>Ipdate Case"</b> link to view/update the case sta Created Date - 05/08/2014 03:16 PM	Files/Not
w Forms By: Category or folder Work Folder Click on the folder name to fill out, ed Click on the "Submit Folder" link nex Folder Name Benefits0508140305 eRetirement Folder	it, or view its contents. (You may t to the folder name to create a cr Action Submit Folder	sort each column by clicking on any of the h ase tracking record OR click on the <b>"View/U</b> Case Tracking View/Update Case ≢1546	eaders - e.g., Folder Name.) pdate Case" link to view/update the case sta Created Date - 05/08/2014 03:16 PM 07/16/2013 03:31 PM	Files/Not

#### Forms in Read-only Mode

You must be the owner of the case in order to edit any forms attached to a case. If you do not own the case and associated forms, you will see a red message, "You are viewing this folder in read-only mode." You can go to the case information page and click the "Reassign" button to assign the case to yourself so you can edit the forms.

#### **Controlling Employee Access to Cases**

**Employees cannot own cases.** Employees cannot be assigned to work on cases. However, if employees have access through "EC" (Employee Center), those employees always have access to any cases and forms associated with themselves except in the following situations:

- The case is marked as **hidden**. Click the "No" link next to "Hidden from Employee" to hide the case from the employee.
- Hidden case types. Some case types are always hidden, such as Employee Relations.
- The individual form is hidden. Click "Manage/Edit Forms" or go to Forms Manager to hide individual forms. Click the "No" link under the appropriate heading to hide a form from the employee.
- The individual form is locked. A locked form may be viewable by employees, but cannot be edited by them. Click "Manage/Edit Forms" to lock or unlock individual forms. Click the "No" link under the appropriate heading to lock a form so the employee cannot edit it.
- When the employee has submitted the folder. When an employee clicks the link to "Submit Folder," all forms in the folder are locked and cannot be further edited by the employee until unlocked by a person in an HR role with access to the forms.

#### **Case Tracking Email Notifications**

FHR Navigator can be used to notify stakeholders of the status of items they are working on. The contents of the emails are customized for each agency. FHR Navigator will send email notifications in the following situations:

- When reassigning a case FHR Navigator will send an email to the new case owner to let recipient know that the case has been assigned to him/her.
- When reassigning a case you do not own When a case is reassigned and the previous owner is not the person doing the reassign action, the previous owner will receive an email notification to let him/her know that the case is no longer assigned to him/her.
- When updating a case to the employee FHR Navigator will send an email to the employee when the case is updated if the person who updates the case chooses "Yes" to send an email to the employee. The notification will include the comments from the regular comments section, but not from the HR Comments section.
- When updating a case to the "To Be Notified" list FHR Navigator will send emails to all
  recipients on the "To Be Notified" list when a case is updated. Anyone who has access to a case
  can add any email addresses to the "To Be Notified" list; however, when the case is updated, the
  user has a choice of which email addresses should be notified. That is, email addresses on the
  "To Be Notified" list can be considered a list of recipients who wish to receive updates, but the
  person who makes the update still has discretion over which email addresses are sent the
  update notification.

#### **Close or Re-Open a Case**

Generally cases can only be closed by the "owner," which is the person in HR to whom the case is currently assigned. Click the "Close Case" button on the Case Information page to close it. While a case is *closed*, it cannot be reassigned and any forms associated with the case cannot be edited. However, closed cases can be reopened. Click the "Re-Open Case" button on the Case Information screen to reopen a closed case.

In some agencies only "owners" who are in Human Resources are able to close cases. If you do not see the "Close case?" check box at the bottom of the "Add Detail/Step" screen, you do not have permission to close cases. To close a case, reassign it to an FHR Navigator user who does have this permission.

**To view closed cases**, go to the appropriate case listing page (e.g., Benefits), and then uncheck the "Open Cases Only" checkbox and press "Submit Search Query".

